
NOTE:  Board minutes are informational only and are not official until approved by Board. 

 

 

 

MINUTES 

PROPERTY STANDARDS BOARD 
JULY 25, 2019 

 

Council Chambers 6:30 p.m. 1945 E. Jackson Road 

 

 

Board members present: Chair Rick Pfeil, Vice Chair Andy Folmer, Jack Fan, Mike Whitley, Dave 

Hermon, Les Folse, Jim Pipkin, Liz Fannin and Maggie Vera.   

 

Staff members present: Second Asst. City Attorney Rachael Carrico; Building Official Brett King; 

Community Services Manager Brian Passwaters; Director of Environmental Service Corey Heiple; Rob 

Guarnieri, Sr. Eng Bldg Insp.; Code Enforcement Officers Steven Taylor, Tim Roush, and Cathy Enloe; Sr 

Code Enforcement Officer Travis Caperton, and Administrative Support Specialist Lydia Tormos. 

 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 6:30 PM  

 

1. Approval of minutes of the June 27, 2019 meeting.  

 

Pipkin moved approval of the minutes of the June 27, 2019 meeting; second by Hermon and the motion 

was approved with a unanimous 9-0 vote. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 

2. Case PSB 2019-13. Carrollton Environmental Services staff inspected the front and rear structures at 

1405 S. Broadway St, WILLIAM LARNER ABST 799 PG 120, TR 14 ACS 0.2342, VOL95008/1205, 

DD122394, CO-DALLAS, 0799120101400 1CC07991201, and found both structures to be a safety hazard. 

Staff initiated a hearing before the Board to issue a Notice and Order to repair or demolish both structures and 

premises within a specified period of time.  

 

Chair Pfeil administered the Oath to all individuals giving testimony on the Case. 

 

Community Services Manager Brian Passwaters referred to Case PSB 2019-10 on the June agenda pertaining to 

1405 S. Broadway and advised that the City was withdrawing that Case. He further stated that based upon a 

legal review, a new case, Case PSB 2019-13 has been generated and will be presented to the Board. 

 

Code Enforcement Officer Steven Taylor presented Case PSB 2019-13 pertaining to 1405 S. Broadway Street, 

Carrollton, Dallas County, Texas.  The presentation included an introduction about the property, information 

about the inspections and violations, and contacts that were made with the owners.  He referred to the Board 

packet for photographs and detail ordinance information.  He stated that the property at 1405 S. Broadway Street 

is an occupied one-story, single family home with a secondary two-story structure that is also occupied. He 

stated that both structures were found to have multiple housing code violations during an inspection held on 

February 19, 2019.  Taylor testified that a tax appraisal district search found the property to be owned by 

Servando and Delia Nunez and there were no liens holders.  He listed the code violations found on the exterior 

of both structures during the inspection on February 19. He stated that he found no running water to either 



Property Standards Board Minutes – July 25, 2019 Page 2 

 

NOTE:  Board minutes are informational only and are not official until approved by Board. 

structure and no electricity to the rear structure, and he listed other violations found in the interior of the 

structures. He testified that the second structure was not registered as rental property and after multiple attempts 

to contact the property owner without success, a citation was issued for failing to register the second structure.  

Taylor stated that the owner was issued a second citation for failing to provide water and electricity to the rear 

structure after the owner had shut off the electricity at the electrical box.  Taylor stated that the owner made 

contact with him at City Hall during the first week of March to address the citations. The owner asked for an 

extension to make repairs and the extension was granted.  On May 2, 2019, a second interior and exterior 

inspection was conducted. Taylor advised that very few violations had been corrected and additional citations 

were issued and additional time was granted to the owner. The next inspection occurred on June 6, 2019 of the 

interior and the exterior and even though some of the violations had been corrected, the majority of the violations 

still existed.  Taylor stated that on July 25, another inspection was conducted on the rear structure and it was 

found that a majority of the violations had been corrected and new photographs were taken and provided to the 

Property Standards Board.  Taylor stated that copies of the Board packet were mailed on July 3 by regular and 

certified mail to the property owner.  Notice of the hearing was posted in the Dallas Morning News.  On July 

22, the City issued one permit to repair the roof; no permits have been issued for electrical or plumbing repairs.  

In summary, he stated that the structures on the property are inadequate for residential use due to the dangerous, 

substandard and unfit conditions for human habitation.  He testified that all legal requirements for notices have 

been met.  City staff recommended that the Board determine both structures, front and rear, at 1405 S. Broadway 

Street, as dangerous, substandard and unfit for human habitation, and a hazard to the health, safety and welfare 

of the public. Staff further seeks a Notice and Order for the property owner to repair the front and rear structures 

and to bring both into compliance within 30 days.  If the property owner fails to complete the repairs in the 

specified time, staff requests that the Board authorize the City of Carrollton to repair or demolish both structures 

in order to bring both into compliance with City code and attach the costs as a lien against the property. 

 

The property owner was not present. 

 

Fan asked for a list of the remaining violations.  Taylor replied that the west side of the structure still had rotted 

wood siding trim; exposed wood, chipped paint and such, and he stated he could provide the current photographs 

taken.  Chair Pfeil explained that the violations as listed in the Board packet were the violations that were issued 

with the Notice to the property owner and are the violations the Board is considering as part of an Order. Any 

corrections to the violations would fall under the Order and be up to the inspections by Code Enforcement and/or 

Building Inspection to approve or deny, and the Board did not need to be specific as to which has been corrected 

or abated.  Fan asked to what extent the owner has shown a willingness to cooperate to make repairs or to 

improve the building.  Taylor replied that the owner has been very active in making repairs; has hired a contractor 

who has spoken with the City to obtain clarification and needed permits. Fan asked if staff was seeking an order 

on both structures or independently and Passwaters replied that the Order would apply to both structures. He 

went on to explain that the City could repair one structure and demolish the other, demolish both or repair both.  

Chair Pfeil added that the owner would have the same opportunity and Passwaters replied affirmatively.  

 

Pipkin asked if the owner had given an estimate of time to complete repairs and Taylor replied that the owner 

told him that it would be completed by Labor Day. 

 

Chair Pfeil opened the public hearing; there being no speakers he opened the floor for discussion or a motion. 

 

Fan moved to close the public hearing; second by Whitley and the motion was approved with a unanimous 

9-0 vote. 

 

Folmer moved that in the matter of Case PSB 2019-13 that upon review of the evidence and testimony 

given that both structures, front and rear, at 1405 S. Broadway Street, Carrollton, TX 75006 be declared 

dangerous, substandard, dilapidated and a hazard to the public’s health, safety and welfare; and that a 



Property Standards Board Minutes – July 25, 2019 Page 3 

 

NOTE:  Board minutes are informational only and are not official until approved by Board. 

Notice and Order be issued to the property owner to repair or demolish both structures, front and rear, 

by making all corrections to bring the property into compliance with City Codes within 30 days. If the 

Owner fails to comply in the specified time, the City of Carrollton is authorized to repair or demolish one 

or both of the structures, front or rear, to abate all code violations and attach the costs as a lien against 

the property; second by Fan and the motion was approved with a unanimous 9-0 vote. 

 

3. Case PSB 2019-11. Carrollton Environmental Services Department staff inspected the structure and 

premises at 3209 Cutler Pl, Property ID #51195, Windmill Hill, Block 14, Lot 31 in Denton County and found 

them to be a safety hazard and a public nuisance. Staff initiated a hearing before the Board to issue a Notice and 

Order to repair or demolish the structure and premises within a specified period of time.  

 

Chair Pfeil administered the Oath to all individuals giving testimony on the case. 

 

Code Enforcement Officer Tim Roush presented Case PSB 2019-11 pertaining to the structure located at 3209 

Cutler Place, Carrollton, Denton County, TX 75007.  He described the structure as a two-story, single-family 

detached structure that is currently being advertised for lease or sale, not occupied and is also registered as a 

single-family rental property.  The owner and lien holders are Kamy Real Property Trust, Waterfield Mortgage 

Co., Inc., EMC Mortgage Corp, Waterfield Financial Corporate, Inc., Khosrow Sadeghian and Justin State Bank.  

He testified that a notice of the hearing was mailed on July 2, 2019 and a revised Notice was issued on July 8, 

2019.  Notice was published in the Sunday, July 7 Edition of the Dallas Morning News; all notices were sent to 

the property owner as well as all lien holders by regular and certified mail.  Roush testified that the property was 

brought to the attention of the City by a prospective renter on February 15, 2019.  He testified that he executed 

a search warrant on February 25, 2019 where he documented approximately 31 code violations and took 

photographs of violations.  Notice of the violations were mailed to Khosrow Sadeghian as Trustee of Kamy Real 

Property Trust, owner.  Another inspection was conducted on May 6, 2019 with the findings that no corrections 

had been made and a second letter was sent to the property owner.  Between May 17 and May 27, 2019 Carrollton 

Police Officers were dispatched multiple times to the location for various concerns including burglary of a 

habitation and suspicious activity and Environmental Services staff responded to concerns of an unsecured 

structure and secured the structure.  He reported there had been no communication from Mr. Sadeghian or any 

other representative of Kamy Real Property Trust.  The property was again inspected on June 18 when 

continuing violations were documented and five citations were issued.  He stated that he received three 

consecutive voicemails from Mr. Sadeghian on June 24, 2019 and testified that on one of the voicemails, Mr. 

Sadeghian stated the work would be completed in nine months. On June 27, 2019, a second search warrant was 

executed in preparation to prepare a dangerous building packet. After a thorough inspection of the structure, 

violations were documented and photographs were taken.  He testified that the photographs included in the 

Board packet were photographs taken on that date.  He provided a verbal listing of the violations and of the 

repairs made.  He advised that in reviewing the water account records, it was determined that the water was 

turned off on November 9, 2017 and was recently activated by Mr. Sadeghian.  As of July 24, 2019, the structure 

is vacant; no workers were present at the time of inspection; water and electrical services were restored; repairs 

were started but were not complete; all other violations remain as previously described.  He added that he was 

provided three security recordings by a neighbor showing children entering and exiting the house.  In summary, 

Roush stated that the property remains to be an attractive nuisance to children and is a hazard to the health and 

safety of the public; and the property continues to be listed for rent or sale.  Staff recommends that the Board 

determine the structure and premises located at 3209 Cutler Place are substandard and a hazard to the health and 

safety of the public; staff seeks a Notice and Order for the owner to abate the list of violations or demolish the 

structure within 30 days.  If the violations are not abated within the specified time, staff seeks authorization for 

the City of Carrollton to repair and abate all listed violations or demolish the structure on the premises and attach 

the costs as a lien against the property. 

 



Property Standards Board Minutes – July 25, 2019 Page 4 

 

NOTE:  Board minutes are informational only and are not official until approved by Board. 

Khosrow Sadeghian, P. O. Box 50593, Denton, TX 76206, stated that the house is located close to a school and 

explained that when a tenant leaves, the school kids break in and tear it up.  He stated he has spoken to the police 

department several times about the problem asking them to watch the property.  He stated he wants to sell the 

property and has the right to sell it “as is.”  He stated that about 90% of the violations are damages caused by 

the break-ins.  He voiced complaints about being required to register the house as a rental and felt he should not 

have to register the house as a rental until he has a tenant.  He felt he is a victim of the criminals and the City; 

and he requested 180 days to make the repairs. He added that he was also waiting for results from the criminal 

case. 

 

Chair Pfeil opened the public hearing. 

 

Zachary Sadeghian, 3501 Sundown Blvd., Denton, TX, testified that his father has been working hard on 

properties since before he was born and talked about the criminals demeaning his father’s property.  He stated 

his father is a good investor and wants to repair the property.  Khosrow Sadeghian interrupted to reiterate that 

they were victimized by the kids breaking into their house and felt that the City were adding to it when they 

should have shown compassion.  He continued by stating he wants 180 days to make the repairs; he doesn’t care 

to rent it until it is fixed or sell it.  He stated he wants to sell it and while the real estate sign states for sale or 

rent he wants to sell it.  Zachary Sadeghian stated he understands it is very emotional. 

 

Mike Iapoluci, 3206 Cutler, voiced his appreciation for this case going forward and stated he has been at his 

location for 30 years.  He stated that the house hasn’t been neglected for just six months; it has been neglected 

for years with the house now being in disrepair.  He talked about how he and his neighbor have called the police 

and helped the detectives with regard to providing videos that show how comfortable the kids were going in and 

out of the house.  He provided a 2½ year historical perspective of break-ins, the house being neglected and 

practically abandoned, and of renters leaving due to the problems.  He stated he talked to a worker there 

approximately a year earlier that talked about the damage to the inside of the house and stated he had never 

spoken with the owner.  He specifically mentioned a picture he sent to the City of the electric meter on the side 

of the house with Romex exposed with holes next to it that was from weather damage or something else but not 

from kids.  He agreed that kids were getting into it but he felt the neglect caused it to be attractive to them.  He 

felt that maintenance and upkeep was lacking. 

 

Chair Pfeil asked Mr. Roush for any closing comments. Roush stated that the case speaks for itself and stated 

his job is to inspect property and list violations. 

 

Chair Pfeil asked Mr. Sadeghian for any closing comments.  Mr. Sadeghian referenced a neighbor who helped 

him catch the kids that were breaking in to the house and stated that’s the kind of neighbor he likes. He suggested 

that the neighbor who spoke tonight could have called the number on the real estate sign about his concerns.  He 

stated that no one should walk on his property and be a policeman without telling him; it’s criminal. 

 

Fan asked Mr. Sadeghian for the name of the contractor he has engaged for the repairs.  Mr. Sadeghian stated 

he has a group of people who go around and fix properties for Kamy Real Property Trust.  He stated they won’t 

do things that require a permit from the City.  He stated it was Jackie Nash Company that does sheetrock and he 

stated they have not filed for any permits because there was nothing that needed a permit according to them.  

Fan asked how much financial investment Mr. Sadeghian has put into the property and he replied there have 

been tenants 2/3 of the time.  He guessed the last tenant was there about a year ago.  Fan asked what measure he 

took to secure the property and Mr. Sadeghian stated that they immediately went to address the broken glass and 

break-in of the property. He felt he took the actions needed to secure the perimeter of the property and stated he 

visits the property every two or three months. He explained he has people that do it because he cannot be 

everywhere. 

 



Property Standards Board Minutes – July 25, 2019 Page 5 

 

NOTE:  Board minutes are informational only and are not official until approved by Board. 

Chair Pfeil moved to close the public hearing; second by Hermon and the motion was approved with a 

unanimous 9-0 vote. 

 

Pipkin moved that the residential structure located at 3209 Cutler Place, Carrollton, TX, Denton County, is 

determined to be found dangerous, substandard, and a hazard to the public’s health; and that the owner has 30 

days from receipt of a certified copy of this Order to correct all City Code violations.; If the property owner fails 

to comply, the City of Carrollton is authorized to correct the violations as necessary through repair or demolition 

of the structure and attach all costs as an un-transferable lien against the property in order to recover its costs; 

second by Whitley.  Discussion was held regarding the motion.  Chair Pfeil suggested amending the motion to 

state that the Board determines the structure and premises at 3209 Cutler Place are dangerous, substandard and 

a hazard to the public’s health, safety and welfare; and the Board issues a Notice and Order for the property 

owner of 3209 Cutler Place to repair and abate all violations or demolish the structure within 30 days; if all 

violations are not abated for the structure and premises, or the structure is not demolished, the City of Carrollton 

staff is authorized demolish the structure and premises and attach the costs as a lien against the property.  Pipkin 

accepted the amendment. 

 

Passwaters advised that staff believed the house was structurally sound and requested the option to repair or 

demolish rather than demolish only.  It was staff’s opinion that the house could be rehabilitated.  Pipkin stated 

he would restate the motion. 

 

Pipkin moved that the residential structure located at 3209 Cutler Place, Carrollton, TX 75007, Denton 

County, is determined to be dangerous, substandard and a hazard to the public’s health and that the 

owner has 30 days from receipt of a certified copy of this Order to correct all City code violations; and if 

the property owner fails to comply, the City of Carrollton is authorized to correct the violations as 

necessary through repair or demolition of the structure and property and attach the costs as a non-

transferable lien against the property in order to recover its costs; second by Whitley.  Second Asst. City 

Attorney Carrico stated the proposed Order related to both the structure and premises, but the only thing the 

motion declared as substandard related solely to the residential structure.  Pipkin amended the motion to state 

structure and premises and Whitley agreed with the amendment. 

 

Fan stated that in light of Mr. Sadeghian’s request for 180 days, the property owner has been on notice since 

February 2019 and that 180 days from February would be roughly around July or August of 2019 and felt that 

30 days should be more than sufficient. 

 

There being no further discussion, the motion was approved with a unanimous 9-0 vote. 

 

4. Case BOA 2019-03. Woodland Graphics, represented by owner Jackie Green, on behalf of Cantera 

Apartments is requesting a variance from Chapter 151.30, Section (D) of the Carrollton Sign Code. The variance 

request is to allow the existing monument sign to be updated and remain in its current location which is 10’ from 

edge of curb located at 1910 S. Josey Lane; Holiday Park Phase 8, Block 1 Lot 1.  

 

Jackie Green, 3630 Marquis, Garland, TX 75042, stated that the owners have taken great pride in the property 

giving it a complete rehab and stated that she designed a sign for the property that updates it considerably. She 

explained that because the property is older, it cannot meet the current 25 foot from curb setback.  She requested 

a variance to allow the updated sign to be placed at the current location of 10 feet from curb. She added that the 

other aspects of the sign meet the Carrollton Sign Code.  Chair Pfeil noted that he failed to administer the Oath 

to Ms. Green but they would continue in good faith as though he did and she agreed. 

 

Fan asked if there were any objections to the proposed sign.  Ms. Green replied that she was unaware of any. 

Building Official Brett King advised that the City does not send out notices on a variance request. He stated that 



Property Standards Board Minutes – July 25, 2019 Page 6 

 

NOTE:  Board minutes are informational only and are not official until approved by Board. 

it’s likely that no one else knows about the application because no activity has occurred on site yet. He stated 

that the proposed sign meets all of the other requirements of the City’s ordinance; it just does not meet the 

setback requirement. 

 

Chair Pfeil noted that the sign would be slightly larger than the current one but still does not violate the City 

ordinance or the visibility triangle and King replied affirmatively. 

 

Chair Pfeil opened the public hearing. 

 

Prash Satoslar, property owner, 2450 Lakeside Parkway, Flower Mound, TX, stated they purchased the property 

in November 2018 and would be putting a large investment in the property to make it nicer, and signage was 

part of the project.  He requested approval. 

 

Folmer asked what would happen if the request was not approved and Mr. Satoslar stated the old sign would 

remain.  Folse asked about the distance from the sign to the building.  Ms. Green explained there is a fence and 

a grade drop, which is a hardship to get the sign any further back.  Folse asked if the complex has changed names 

or applied for a new Certificate of Occupancy (C.O.).  Ms. Green stated the C.O. has already been issued and 

King replied affirmatively.  Fan asked if there was any danger or concerns regarding visibility and King replied 

the sign is outside the visibility triangle for that driveway and there would be no danger from a visibility 

standpoint. 

 

Fan moved to close the public hearing; second by Folmer and the motion was approved with a unanimous 

9-0 vote. 

 

Hermon moved to grant the variance for the sign as requested; second by Pipkin and the motion was 

approved with a unanimous 9-0 vote. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS:  

 

a. Staff Reports – King advised there was one PSB case for next month.  Passwaters also advised there would be 

a case for the next agenda. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
Folmer moved to adjourn; second by Whitley and the motion was approved with a unanimous 9-0 vote, 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 

 

 

    

Chairperson Secretary 


